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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Troy is situated on top of a small ridge approximately 400 feet
southeast of the intersection of Interstate 95 and Maryland Route
176 in Howard County, Maryland.

Troy, built during the first quarter of the nineteenth century, is
representative of the late Georgian style in Maryland architecture.
The house, three bays wide and two deep, is two and one-half stories
on the front and sides and three and one-half stories on the rear,
where a basement was added to compensate for the ground which falls
away at that point.

The walls are constructed of uncoursed local fieldstone that contains
large concentrations of oxidized iron, giving the structure an over-
all dull red hue. Large stones were placed in the front and rear
facades, while smaller, more compact stones were employed in the

side walls where monumentality and importance were not overlying
concerns. The building's stark appearance is broken by decorative
masonry that includes the placement of stone quoins at each corner

of the building, as well as the use of large rectangular lintels
subdivided by a stylized keystone, also of cut stone, shaped either
as a normal four-sided keystone or in a more unusual pentagonal form.

Upper and lower windows were vertically aligned within the walls.
All windows, originally double hung sash with six over six lights,
have been removed and the openings bricked in or boarded over to
protect the house from vandals. Small basement windows are also
found in the east, west, and north facades. In the east gable end
of the building, placed symmetrically between the second story
windows near the peak of the roof, a small semi-circular brick
arch surmounts a rectangular attic window. A small attic window
is also present in the west gable end, but appears without a
semi-circular capping arch. As with the other major windows, all
original woodwork has been removed.

Entrances are located in the second bay on both front and rear
facades. The original front door, now removed, is surmounted by
a lintel and four-sided keystone treatment similar to that found
in the fenestration. Another doorway found at the northeast end
of the building led into what was originally the kitchen space.

The simple gable roof is covered with modern tar paper and ter-
minates with a simple boxed cornice with returns. Two massive
brick chimneys with corbeled caps are placed within each gable end.
The chimneys in the west end of the gable, as well as the chimney
at the southeast end of the building, are identical. The fourth
chimney, roughly twice the width of the others, is located in the
southwest end of the roof. All the chimneys have common bond

(See Continuation Sheet #1)
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brickwork, and an overall crispness and shape that suggest they
are?féﬁﬁilding carried out in the early twentieth century. A
small dormer is placed in the middle of the rear (north) facade
and is also a twentieth century addition.

In plan, the building has a central hall, double pile organization.
Because of a fire which destroyed much of the interior of the house
in the 1830's, the original paneling was destroyed. The late
Federal paneling that replaced the original has finely detailed
carving and decoration. Architrave trim surrounding both doors

and windows has finely cut fluting and corner blocks both at the
top and bottom of the surround. Underneath each window is a dado
which is subdivided into three rectangular panels. Further ex-
amples of this decorative treatment are found throughout other
sections of the house.

The basement remains virtually unchanged. In each of its four

. rooms stands a massive uncoursed rubble foundation for the large
chimneys of the house. In the southeast end of the building, a
stair of thirteen stone steps leads to a small fruit cellar.
Measuring 10' x 5' x 8', the cellar is constructed of brick and
is capped by a semi-circular arch. Small niches remain in its
walls into which planking was inserted to form the base for the
cellar's drying racks. A small ventilation duct is located at
the far (south) end of the construction.

In the upggéréyories, two bedrooms on each side flank the hallway.
These have-beem greatly altered by the building's most recent
owner,? Only a small amount of original decorative paneling
remains intact. - /2As2 ded {/d»ﬂcj ﬁ/ﬁ/ (942,

Due to the deteriorating condition of the interior, much of the
third floor attic framing system is now exposed. Small trees
were used as studs and minor framing members in the interior
walls. The roof rafters, probably a replacement of the second
half of the nineteenth century, are circular-saw cut and are
butt-jointed with mortise and tenon joints and secured with
treenails. Incised Roman numerals are present on both roof
rafters and the plates and girts in the basement, and indicate
the use of a traditional "prefabricated" construction technique.

A March 29, 1880 view of Troy Hill,l with projected modifications,
. shows the house as it existed at that time. The house, remodeled

) b
in the ;gn—poPular Cottage style, had a cross gable with

(See Continuation Sheet $#2) o
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decorative cast iron cresting at its peak. The eave line of the
roof was also slightly extended at each end of the building. A
one -story porch with balcony spanned the front facade. Window
hoods were placed above all front facade windows and were horizon-
tally connected by a projecting fillet. Wooden pilasters were
also attached at each corner of the building and extended to the
eave line. The drawing is also important as it shows the relation-
ship of the outbuildings to the house. There is no evidence to
prove that these extensive alterations were ever undertaken, and
it is probable that the view reflects the architect's conjectural
"modernization" of the building.

In 1942 Troy was remodeled in the Colonial Revival style. A two
story portico, supported by the four simple square piers, was
added to the front facade. Large wooden surrounds were added to
the windows of the front facade as were sets of exterior blinds.

A massive door surround was also added to the front facade. Two
large pilasters were added flanking the front door, with raised
capital blocks supporting a full projecting entablature. Numerous
interior changes and living room areas and in the upper bedrooms.
An elliptical arch was placed between the hall and the living room
and Italian marble veneer was placed in the upper bedrooms.

The remains of a number of outbuildings are extant near the main
house. Nearest, foundation walls are all that remain of two
structures, most probably a smokehouse and dairy. Located farther
from the main house are the ruins of a large barn, including its
stone foundation walls and piers. The walls are of the same

local iron-rich fieldstone used in the house. A twentieth century
trash pit, possibly with earlier remains, is also located a short
distance from the rear of the house.

1. The original drawing was executed by Leon Kopezynski,
and is owned by Dr. Brice M. Dorsey, "Hockley-in-the-Hole,"
Annapolis, Maryland. (A 1940 photograph at the Maryland
Historical Society confirms that these modifications were

actually carrieq out. Found by the Howard County Depart-
ment of Recreation and Parks, Ed Shull.)

GPD 892 455
b
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(DESCRIPTION, continuéd) ADDENDUM TO DESCRIPTION

A question has been raised regarding the architectural integrity of the
present building. As mentioned in the description, many of the changes
to the original structure were made by the last owners of the property,
Mr. Pedro del Valle. Most of the interior changes on the second floor
were done by Mr dell Valle. The original front cornice, which was
identical to that still present on the rear facade, was completely
removed when the two story portico was built. Much damage to the build-
ing's fabric also took place from the time the building was acquired by
the State of Maryland (December 16, 1978) for road construction, and the
time the property was sold to Howard CSunty in September 1971. An
appraisal, done at that time, noted that all mantels had been stripped,
the stairway was missing, all window glass was broken, wiring needed to

be replaced and the roof needed fixing. From that time to the present,
. Howard County's Department of Recreation and Parks has stabilized and
maintained the building. £lecc.fs exfaud, Bevag STeud. W Il &< re-used

Pty Pank Cdeiards SHPO., Saxe @207
Documentation for the building's architecture features during the period
from the early 20th century through the del Valle's ownership exists in
numerous local photographers' personal collections.? The Howard County .
Department of Recreation and Parks is also in the process of recording the
building, according to Historic American Building Survey standards. This
material will no doubt be utilized by this department in its plans to
adaptively re-use the building, outlined below. Flaws have chasged,
: Sex plov shedd!

After initial acquisition of the building in 1971, the Howard County
Department of Recreation and Parks planned in 1974-1976 to use the
structure as part of a recreational facility. In its most recent plan,
the 1978 Howard County Parks Recreation and Open Space Master Plan, the
county plans to develop Troy as an interpretive center for gardening and
horticulture as well as using it for a conference center. It will
include an aboretum gardens of many types, walking paths, a greenhouse
for instructional purposes, as well as a small working farm. The arboretum
will be planted and maintained by local garden groups. The development
of Troy is planned to mesh with a new local community park’ nearby.

Listing of Troy on the National Register of Historic Places would do much
to spur the Howard County government into quick and much needed emergency
stabilization for the building. It also will spur the above plans into
. luplementaition auring 979,

2Photographs are owned by Mr. and Mrs. Dahl and Mrs. Celia Holland, a
local Howard County historian.
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Troy Hill is a massive stone house built in the Georgian tradition

some time after 1798 (the building does not appear on the Federal
pirect Tax of 1798 for Anne Arundel County). It is interesting as a
1ate example of this style and one that was executed in stone rather
than the more usual brick. The details in the stonework are well done.
mhe lintels have pentagonal keystones and the quoins are neatly set

Off by stone equivalents of the queen closers in brick masonry. Most

of the interior woodwork, (which remains from the 1830's when it replacec
the original after a fire) is in a well-crafted late Federal style. The
storage cellar in the basement is of interest with its arched ceiling
and ventilation system still largely intact.

The Troy land has traditionally been thought of as the home of the
Honorable John Dorsey, one of the first generation of Anne Arundel

. County Dorseys and a man well known in his time. Dorsey served in

the Assembly in 1692-1693, 1700-1704, and from 1711 until his death in
1714. He was also Justice of Anne Arundel County in 1694 and 1696, a
captain in the Baltimore County militia in 1696, and member of several
commissions assigned to carry out civic duties. Dorsey -owned extensive
lands in Anne Arundel and Baltimore Counties, including the 763 acres
patented in 1694 as Troy (Patent B 23/288). It is believed that
"shortly before 1700 he moved with his family to his plantation called
Troy" (Dorsey/Nimmo, p. 133), at which time he built a house cften
thought mistakenly to be the present one.

The Honorable John Dorsey died in 1714 leaving his plantation called
Troy to his grandson Basil Dorsey (Dorsey/Nimmo, p. 157). In December
1722 Troy was resurveyed for Caleb Dorsey on behalf of his son Basil.
This new survey contained 1016 acres (IB/414). Basil died in 1763 and
willed "one-third part of lands I now live on, also one-third of lands
I hold adjacent" to his wife Sarah and the other two-thirds of each to
his son Thomas (Will 31/1007).

Thomas Dorsey was a prominent man in his day and an important figure in
Maryland's Revolutionary life. However, his will, prcbated in 1790,
stated that "it pleased God to bestow on me a Liberal Fortune which I
have lately lost by my Indiscretion and ill .judged Confidence .
(Anne Arundel County Will Box D/73). Dorsey left all of his estate

to his wife and children, but Elizabeth, his widow, had to sell some

of it to pay debts. In 1793 she sold "the dwelling plantation whereon

(See Continuation Sheet #3) /)/.’&W‘f&/ Lo it ///A’ s0~ ¥ 51 N
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SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

the said Thomas Dorsey resided" to Samuel Norwood (apparently a
son-in-law). This contained "about 100 acres of land" (Deed JG3/

197) . Norwood deeded this land back to Elizabeth in 1793 and on

the Federal tax of 1798 she and three other Dorseys, Archibald,
Theodore, and Sarah, each owned parts of Troy. Elizabeth at this

time lived in Baltimore and no buildings appear on her part of Troy.
Sarah did not live on her portion either, but rented the "1 story
dwelling house 18 by 14 wood." Archibald, a son of Thomas, did live

on Troy, in a house of the following description: "l story dwell-
ing house 66 by 20 wood 1 out house 22 by 20 stone 1 d° 22 by 20 stone
1 d@° 16 by 16 wood 1 d°© 18 by 14 1 d° 16 by 12." Theodore, another son
of Thomas, lived on one of these in a "1 story dwelling house 28 by 16
wood." (Federal Direct Tax Assessment of 1798, Patuxent and Huntington
Hundreds, Anne Arundel County, Maryland).

After 1800 Elizabeth Dorsey sold several parts of Troy, as did the

. others, but the record is at present so complicated that it has been
to date impossible to determine on which section of the original tract
the present house stands. Further research will be required to deter-
mine the builder of the house, although it is traditionally believed
to have been a Dorsey. Archibald Dorsey was a doctor in Harford
County by 1830, and it is possible that either he or his brother
Theodore was responsible for the solid stone structure which remains
as a local landmark of their family.

GPO 892 455
~
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ADDENDUM TO SIGNIFICANCE

. Troy Hill is a large stone house built in the Georgian tradition during the
first quarter of the nineteenth century (the buiding does not appear
on the Federal Direct Tax of 1798 for Anne Arundel County). The
building, begun in 1808 and erected over the next twenty years, is the
finest building of its size and massive proportions constructed in this
section of Howard County during this period.l It is significant as a
late example of this style and one that was executed in stone rather
than the more usual brick, an obvious effort to achieve a high level of
style for a county becoming increasingly more cosmopolitan. The details
in the stoneworks are excellently executed. The lintels have pentagonal
keystones and the quoins are neatly set off by stone equivalents of
queen closers in brick masonry. Most of the interior woodwork, (which
‘ remains from the 1830's when it replaced the original after a fire) is in
a well-crafted late Federal style. The storage cellar in the basement

is of interest with its arched ceiling and ventllatlon system st111
largely intact.

lAccording to the Federal Direct Tax of 1798 for Anne Arundel County,
only wooden buildings were located on parcel four of the Troy tract.
Further, in the Huntington Hundred, there were fewer than a dozen homes
constructed of a material other than wood, and they were brick.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Beginning at a point in the Northeasternmost right of way line and right
of way line of through highway of Maryland Route 100 leading from U.S.
Route 1 to I95, said point of beginning being the intersection of the
aforesaid Northeasternmost right of way line and right of way line
of through highway and the line of Division between the property which
by deed dated January 16, 1942 and recorded among the Land Reocrds of
Howard County in liber B. M. Jr. no. 173, folio 156, was conveyed by
John T. Neubauer and Frances K. Neubauer to Pedro A. Del Valle and
wife and the property which by deed dated August 22, 1957 and recorded
among the Land Records of Howard County in liber R.H.M. no 303, folio
199, was conveyed by Pedro A. Del Valle and wife to Herbert A, Nickel
and Emma H. Nickel, wife, said point of beginning being situated 190
feet measured at right angles to the right of Station 71402+ of the base
line of right of way of Maryland Route 100, as said base line of right
of way is delineated on the State Highway Administration - State Roads
Commission's plat numbered 40390, attached hereto and made a part

. hereof, running thence and binding along the aforesaid Northeastern-
most right of way line and right of way line through highway (Md.
Rte. 100) in a Northwesterly direction 202 feet+, thence continuing
in a Northwesterly direction 800 feet+, thence cContinuing in a
Northwesterly direction by a curve to the right having a radius of
a radius of 653.94"feet for a distance of 551 feet+, thence in a
Northeasterly direction 246 feet+, thence continuing in a Northeasterly
direction 260 feet+, thence contihuing in a Northeasterly direction
40 feet+, thence continuing in a Northeasterly direction by a curve
to the right having a radius of 985.92 feet for a distance of 180
feet+,thence continuing in a Northeasterly direction for a distance
of 320 feet+, thence continuing in a Northeasterly direction by a
curve to the right having a radius of 1045.92 feet for a distance of 102
feet+, thence continuing in a Northeasterly direction by curve to the
right having a radius of 2191.83 feet for a distance of 215 feet+,
thence leaving the aforesaid Northeasternmost right of way line and righ:i
of way line of through highway in a Southeasterly direction 480 feet+,
thence in a Southwesterly direction 310 feet+, thence in a Southeasterly
direction 1780 feet+, thence in a Southwesterly direction 540 feet+,
thence continuing in a Southwesterly direction 330 feet + to intersect
the aforementioned line of division, running thence and binding thereon
in a Southeasterly direction 99 feet + to the place of beginning.
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GEORGE HOWARD BUILDING
3430 COURT HOUSE DRIVE

ELLICOTT CITY, MARYLAND 21043 William M. Mitchell
[301] 992-2480 Director

“Auguse—28, 1978
Cct: 10,1578

Ms. Pamela James
Maryland Historic Trust
Shaw House

21 State Circle
Annapolis, MD 21401

Dear Pamela:

Attached please find additional information on the history of Troy. I hope it answers
the questions raised during the National Register of Historic Structures review.

You will note that the Dorsey family parceled off Troy over a period of 40 years
after the death of Thomas Dorsey in 1790.

Please, also, note the transaction dealing with Parcel IV. It indicates that a sub-
stantial sum of money was invested in this part of Troy in the first quarter of the
nineteenth century. Since this parcel of land includes the existing dwelling and
the construction details of the house indicate a like period of time we are

assuming that the house referred to as Troy was built by Vincent Bailey not the
Dorsey family. a

Although the house cannot now be associated with the Dorsey family, the Department feels
that the architectural integrity of the structure still qualifies it for National
Register status. We now feel we can see the house in a better perspective and

realize that much of what we first thought to be additions are in fact origimal.

In terms of who Mr. Vincent was, we have uncovered no information other than that
referenced. As time and staffing permit, we hope to be able to pursue him further.

We would request that the Maryland Trust support us in this and continue to process
the application with all due speed.

Sincerely,

T rks Planner

. “kd

ure
M. Mitchell

"KEEP HOWARD COUNTY GREEN"

\




The Maryland Historical Trust

Shaw Howuse, 21 State Circle, Annapolis, Maryland 21401

301: 2602212 or 2692438

Dr. William Murtagh

Keeper

National Register of Historic Places
U. S. Department of the Interior
National Park Service

Washington, D.C. 20240

Dear Bill:

NO-Uy

Please find enclosed the National Register nomination

form for the following building:

Troy
Howard County

We appreciate your interest and will look forward to
the acceptance of this building on the National Register.

Sincerely,

n N. Pearce
istoric Preservation
Officer

State

JNP/njm
Enclosures: 1 U.S.G.S. Map

1 National Register form
5 Photographs

Department of Economic and Community Development




~

No-4 Y

o \ = -
.‘:,3 MI. TO U.S. 1|

41230
3

\ O e
T Troy Hiw

A 18[3480i0|434080
B 13]34816| 4339540
C  1B[347450 [4339400
@90 18] 247740 ) 433380
71 B 18)M1560| 432160
’ F 18] 441860] 4240 lbo

ELKRIDGE 2.9
BALTIMORE 9

| W
-y

5662 11 NUV|

“(RELAY)



















Ho-44 -
TRY

que/q Jamé;

“lg/7¢
Nfg:d"‘{ /'”k./)/{?"/w







HO-‘H'
TRY

quc_fa. Jaome s
n/6/7¢ |
MNeg o free MHT |

o~







Ho -4«
.T‘r’g \f H l"”
-:)aﬂ'l!.f ‘}m: LUUI/OJIJ;-\. o
9]

s/eq/ie7zo o




- Py =

] ‘:P;«?,' i




HO -L Y
-Tf'z)7 H'-.r/.f

:S am€S$ T; L‘JG/IO"/‘J".
6/2!—;/ g 70

o
&)
o







H’O "l’[_{

Troy Het/

: o
Names |, {,Jo//o,»/:):.- 8

g/'?"1'/:“/ 76







Ho-49%)
Tr ut/ H I

TamesT. waltlon, T
5/2‘1{:? 7







Ho-4y
Treoy W2

Saomes T, lﬂd//dﬂ, Jh%

6/4.’ U/r o 70

o







Ho-uy

Vew FromTroy #ilf o
o
j”mC_ST, [,-qo//dn,'_jp o

E/-c_' 4,/' CE>







Koy
Vie w From Troy W
SemesT. lvolluyTies

‘5/‘2 ‘f/fcar 7 O







Trhoy #M
Ao YY













Tr@q Hp toe

HO—- uy

% IR ~wey































fTﬁp Flouce

:'_:r'#;-" f/ﬁe_ /'/f;rp-v[{_, f

- L

L oo







Tr oV Ioner

/i e ‘C(QL, |~

[0 A€
HO -y
RJ K 2 m“g



3 B 3 S













W= wone Naake s '

TI‘D_L[ HI“ Howard Lo

*G_ry/;n g




Bl Loe - i e

/Zﬂ///%‘v% é}ﬂm*-/ﬂ’é% /w /ﬁos /"/Vué N /Q”W
‘W/??/fff bt =S PG D)
: TROY

Aree 7’”&& Bl

/v ”’)’y AN
" 128771

Wiy
=k,

PHOTO - corPY
£ BY -

M. E. WARREN PHOTOOR APHY

ANNADOL IS, MmN




